

Senate T&E Committee
April 17, 1991
Page
EXEC APPTS
SB 997 - PH

SENATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE
ON TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

April 17, 1991Hearing Room 343
3:00 P.M.State Capitol
Salem, OR

Tapes 77 - 88
Executive Appointments - Progress Board
David Frohnmayer and William Scott
Key Industries

MEMBERS PRESENT: SEN. WAYNE FAWBUSH, CHAIR
 SEN. SCOTT DUFF
 SEN. JEANNETTE HAMBY
 SEN. JIM HILL
 SEN. PEG JOLIN
 SEN. EUGENE TIMMS

MEMBERS EXCUSED:

STAFF PRESENT: JOSEPH CORTRIGHT, EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 TAMIRA MILLER, POLICY ANALYST
 JERI CHASE, OFFICE MANAGER
 HOLLY BROWN, COMMITTEE ASSISTANT

WITNESSES:DAVID FROHNMAYER, ATTORNEY GENERAL
WILLIAM SCOTT, PRESIDENT, PACIFIC DEVELOPMENT
DUNCAN WYSE, ADMINISTRATOR, OREGON PROGRESS BOARD
DAVID LOHMAN, SENIOR DEPUTY DIRECTOR, ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT
LYNN YOUNGBAR, LEGISLATIVE LIAISON, ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

NOTE: These minutes contain materials which paraphrases and/or summarizes statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speaker's exact words. For complete contents of the proceedings, please refer to the tapes.

TAPE 77, SIDE A

000 CHAIR FAWBUSH convenes the meeting at 3:21 p.m.

Executive Appointment to the Progress Board - Dave Frohnmayer

005 DAVE FROHNMAYER: I am participating because the Governor requested MY participation. I admire this boards ability to look at Oregon honestly and try to improve

those things which are failing.

031 SEN. HAMBY: Criminal justice issues have not been improving. I think that it is important that the Governor appoints someone like yourself who is familiar with criminal justice.

046 FROHNMAYER: I would like to see the aspect of public safety improved in relation to criminal justice.

060 SEN. HILL: The perspective of an attorney is important for this board.

078 CHAIR FAWBUSH: There is a possibility that benchmarks will be set and a way to measure them will be created and then the benchmarks will deteriorate. If that happens the Progress Board will not be popular. Do you have any thoughts on how you would handle a negative trend?

089 FROHNMAYER: I intend to be outspoken. The mission of this Board is still in need of refinement but I think its responsibility is to be the honest broker of the information that comes to its attention and to be a bully pulpit.

102 CHAIR FAWBUSH: The next year or so I don't think we will meet some of the goals we are setting.

109 FROHNMAYER: Measure 5 may cause progress to be more modest. I think the benchmarks need to be realistic.

120 SEN. HAMBY: The sex offender program spent a lot of money and we have no data regarding whether it is successful or not. I would hope you would look into that a bit more.

140 FROHNMAYER: I think the legislature should provide some information regarding whether the board is authorized to help develop strategies and public policies to reach those benchmarks.

169 MOTION: SEN. HAMBY moves that Dave Frohnmayer be recommended to be appointed to the Progress Board.

VOTE: By roll call vote (5-0) the committee agrees to recommend that Dave Frohnmayer be appointed to the Progress Board. Voting AYE: SENATORS DUFF, HAMBY, HILL, JOLIN, and FAWBUSH. EXCUSED: SENATOR TIMMS.

Executive Appointment to the Progress Board - William Scott

175 WILLIAM SCOTT: I believe that any organization or community that has its act together in terms of having a consistent set of goals has more power and competitive opportunity than a community that does

not have those things. I think that even if the level of resources we have enjoyed weren't threatened that we can't possible achieve these kinds of goals without spending them a lot better.

226 CHAIR FAWBUSH: What do you see as the role of the Progress Board when the measurements are getting worse instead of improving?

228 SCOTT: The most important role of the Progress Board is to find the truth. I know there are many institutions which are not eager to have their results measured and published. However, I think that it is important to establish credibility so the public will believe in the board.

255 SEN. DUFF: I would appreciate it if you looked closely at telecommunications. I have a question about general management within state government. I know the Department of Transportation is using the quality circles style of management, are you experienced with that system of management?

276 SCOTT: I have not been involved with it but I am familiar with the literature and the potential of employee participation. I am sure that state government is in need of some new management styles just as most organizations are. We had a discussion on the work plan of the board and the main thing is to work through strategy in the quality of life area comparable to the human investment strategy that has been dealt with in the workforce area. I had a question given the focus that everyone has on quality of government service and cost of government currently whether we might not have a role to play in highlighting some things in that area.

306 MOTION: CHAIR FAWBUSH moves to recommend that William Scott be appointed to the Progress Board.

VOTE: By roll call vote (5-0) the committee agrees to recommend that William Scott be appointed to the Progress Board. Voting AYE: SENATORS DUFF, HAMBY, HILL, JOLIN and FAWBUSH. EXCUSED: SENATOR TIMMS.

328 SEN. HILL: I think it is important to look at the legal system in the benchmarks.

335 DUNCAN WYSE: We can develop benchmarks in that area and I will also bring that up to the board.

340 SEN. HAMBY: Were any of the values, that were identified by the futures commission, incorporated into Oregon Shines?

346 WYSE: Yes.

371 MILLER: Presents Staff Measure Summary on SB 997 (EXHIBIT A).

432 DAVID LOHMAN: Submits comments on SB 997 (EXHIBIT B) and "Key Industry Program 1989-91 Initiatives" (EXHIBIT C).

TAPE 78, SIDE A

043 SEN. HILL: What is your concept of how the Strategic Reserve Fund and Key Industries are related?

049 LOHMAN: You need to sit down with people from an industry and have them say what is it that their industry needs and what could the state provide and the list is long. They are not things that you would have anticipated. Because we did have some things come up during the biennium in the course of these discussion that we couldn't fund from any other source we turned to the Strategic Reserve Fund and went to the Governor and he agreed. I think the same thing will happen in the next biennium.

063 SEN. HILL: I thought we used the Strategic Reserve Fund for these types of things generally and now we are creating a fund for these things specifically. What was the idea for the Strategic Reserve Fund initially?

069 LOHMAN: It is to be spent on long range opportunities within the basic industries of the state. It fits very well with this description of SB 997.

073 SEN. HILL: I am concerned that things will be on the Strategic Reserve Fund list this time and then next time we will have to find more funds for them.

080 LOHMAN: I don't know how much money they want to put in the blank for the dollar amount. If we attempted to do everything that is asked of us in the bill we probably couldn't do that for \$1 million.

093 SEN. HAMBY: How much state money is being invested into secondary wood products?

094 LOHMAN: \$243,360.

097 LYNN YOUNGBAR: The total with leverage is about \$400,000.

107 SEN. HAMBY: Your secondary wood product breakdown is wonderful. Will all these wood products and secondary wood products be continued?

110 LOHMAN: No. I don't think that any of these will be continued our intention is to be the catalyst. We want an industry group to take over themselves. There is nothing in the budget for the metals category.

140 SEN. HAMBY: Is software ready to spin off?

147 LOHMAN: They have a vibrant organization going, they are thinking of asking for some additional money and I am not really in agreement with that. In the biotechnology industry I don't think they are asking for any additional state funding. They are asking for state assistance in securing some federal funds. In the film and video industry this committee has passed a bill that creates a Film and Video Board and they requested at the time \$170,000 to do some activities. I think it is early to spin them off.

185 CHAIR FAWBUSH: We are not giving any money for the Film and Video Board out of lottery.

195 SEN. HAMBY: Is Environmental Technology ready to spin off?

200 LOHMAN: No.

214 SEN. HAMBY: Is the Straw Utilization study completed?

216 LOHMAN: No, but with this money it would be finished. On fishing I don't know of anything further to be done on the feasibility study for the utilization of whiting.

250 SEN. HAMBY: Were the results of the whiting study positive?

255 LOHMAN: Yes. It is feasible to economic process whiting into surimi in shore based facilities.

270 LOHMAN: OACIS is an advanced computing facility that we have put \$5 million into in the last 2 bienniums. This has been useful for a number of things. We have an opportunity to become leaders in parallel processing which has come from OACIS.

347 CHAIR FAWBUSH: Almost all of the money that funded these programs was from the Strategic Reserve Fund.

388 SEN. JOLIN: Is targeting Key Industries going to remain in the Strategic Reserve pot or are there going to be 2 pots?

409 CHAIR FAWBUSH: There were two line items on the lottery allocation list that are Strategic Reserve and the one for \$1 million was for Key Industries.

413 SEN. HILL: What is left in Strategic Reserve Fund?

423 LOHMAN: \$1.3 million, but there are still some projects being negotiated.

TAPE 77, SIDE B

056 LOHMAN: Presents EXHIBIT B.

079 CHAIR FAWBUSH: We need to give the department some flexibility and allow them to do some

prioritizing as they go through the biennium.

085 LOHMAN: Continues presentation of EXHIBIT B.

090 CHAIR FAWBUSH: The intent is that this is used as a reference list.

099 LOHMAN: Continues EXHIBIT B.

104 CHAIR FAWBUSH: I would ask the committee to look at the network brokers and if we are interested we have two choices either say the department shall establish this training program or they may establish it. If we say shall we need to fund it.

117 LOHMAN: Continues EXHIBIT B.

150 CHAIR FAWBUSH: We want you to report on an annual basis but it doesn't have to be anything fancy.

155 LOHMAN: I would prefer we do a written report every 2 years and give an oral report every year.

163 CHAIR FAWBUSH: Some of us are interested in the activity and how it is working. This could be a major activity in economic development.

182 CHAIR FAWBUSH: The question is if you have found something successful what do you do? The committee needs to think about formalizing this into a branch of the department.

207 SEN. HILL: My concern is that you have the strategic reserve that will be setting up programs that have a need for lottery. I think we need to be conscious of that.

265 CHAIR FAWBUSH: That is a key question that we will look at on friday.

278 CHAIR FAWBUSH adjourns the meeting at 4:39 pm.

Submitted by,

Jeri Chase
Office Manager

EXHIBIT SUMMARY

EXHIBIT A - Staff Measure Summary on SB 997, submitted by Tami Miller, pgs. 2.

EXHIBIT B - Comments on SB 997, submitted by David Lohman, pgs. 4.

EXHIBIT C - "Key Industry Program 1989-91 Initiatives," submitted by David Lohman, pgs. 2.

Senate T&E Committee
April 17, 1991
Page
SB 562 - PH

SENATE LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE
ON TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

April 17, 1991Hearing Room 343
4:30 P.M.State Capitol
Salem, OR

Tapes 79 - 82
Lottery Allocation

SENATE MEMBERS PRESENT: SEN. WAYNE FAWBUSH, CO-CHAIR
SEN. SCOTT DUFF
SEN. JEANNETTE HAMBY
SEN. JIM HILL
SEN. PEG JOLIN
SEN. EUGENE TIMMS

HOUSE MEMBERS PRESENT: REP. RAY BAUM, CO-CHAIR
REP. MARGARET CARTER, VICE CHAIR
REP. JERRY BARNES
REP. CEDRIC HAYDEN
REP. VERA KATZ
REP. DAVE MC TEAGUE
REP. BOB PICKARD

MEMBERS EXCUSED:

STAFF PRESENT: JOSEPH CORTRIGHT, EXECUTIVE OFFICER
TAMIRA MILLER, POLICY ANALYST
JERI CHASE, OFFICE MANAGER
HOLLY BROWN, COMMITTEE ASSISTANT

WITNESSES:SENATOR LENN HANNON, DISTRICT 26
ANN SELZER, CAMPAIGN COORDINATOR, OREGON
SHAKESPEARE FESTIVAL
SENATOR DICK SPRINGER, DISTRICT 6
DANI WILKE, LEGISLATIVE ASSISTANT FOR
REPRESENTATIVE GAIL SHIBLEY, DISTRICT 12
MARILYNNE EIKENGER, PRESIDENT, OREGON MUSEUM
OF SCIENCE AND INDUSTRY
DORIS WADSWORTH, COMMISSIONER, DOUGLAS COUNTY,
CHAIR UMPQUA REGIONAL COUNCIL
ALAN HERSHEY, DIRECTOR, MID WILLAMETTE VALLEY
COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS
REPRESENTATIVE LIZ VAN LEEUWEN, DISTRICT 37
ROGER CAMPBELL, TECHNICAL MANAGER, PULP AND
TALBOT HALSEY FACILITY
GEORGE VAN LEEUWEN, FAMILY FARM OWNER
SENATOR MAE YIH, DISTRICT 19
REPRESENTATIVE JACKIE TAYLOR, DISTRICT 2
DON RODEWALDT, COMMISSIONER LYNN COUNTY
BILL COCKRELL, PRESIDENT, COVERED BRIDGE SOCIETY
OF OREGON
BRUCE ANDREWS, DIRECTOR, DEPARTMENT OF

AGRICULTURE

REPRESENTATIVE LARRY SOWA, DISTRICT 26

REPRESENTATIVE TIM JOSI, DISTRICT 3

DALE PEARSON, RESTORATION AND ENHANCEMENT
BOARD

GARY BRECKEN, PROJECT DIRECTOR, COLUMBIA RIVER
BICENTENNIAL COMMISSION

MARGUARITE WRIGHT, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR,
COLUMBIA RIVER BICENTENNIAL COMMISSION

JIM BUSSARD, CHAIRMAN, FISH RESTORATION AND
ENHANCEMENT BOARD

WALTER RUDD, DIRECTOR, OREGON ADVANCED
COMPUTING INSTITUTE

HOWARD WERTH, VICE PRESIDENT AND CONTROLLER,
GUNDERSON, INC.

JOHN DILLON, CHIEF METALLURGIST, ESCO

JOHN HAYGARTH, DIRECTOR OF RESEARCH AND
DEVELOPMENT, TELEDYNE WAH CHANG

XUAN NGUYEN-DINH, MANAGER, MATERIALS AND
PROCESS DEVELOPMENT, PRECISION CASTPARTS CORP.

RICHARD CALLICRATE, COMMUNITY ECONOMIC
STABILIZATION CORPORATION

JACK VISCARDI, COMMUNITY ECONOMIC STABILIZATION
CORPORATION

CHARLOTTE KENNEDY, WORLD AFFAIRS COUNCIL

NOTE: These minutes contain materials which paraphrases and/or summarizes statements made during this meeting. Only text enclosed in quotation marks reports a speaker's exact words. For complete contents of the proceedings, please refer to the tapes.

TAPE 79, SIDE A

000 CO-CHAIR BAUM convenes the meeting at 4:40 p.m.

SB 562 (Lottery Allocation) - Public Hearing

Oregon Shakespeare Festival/Oregon Museum of Science and Industry (SB 565)

022 SENATOR LENN HANNON: Testifies in support of lottery funding of \$1.6 million for Oregon Shakespeare Festival (SB 565). This is intended to take place on a one time bases.

057 REP. BARNES: Testifies in support of lottery funding for Oregon Shakespeare Festival (SB 565).

084 ANN SELZER: Testifies in support of lottery funding for Oregon Shakespeare Festival (SB 565). Submits information folder on The Oregon Shakespeare Festival (EXHIBIT A).

145 SENATOR DICK SPRINGER: Testifies in support of lottery funding for the Oregon Museum of Science and Industry (SB 565).

180 DANI WILKE: Testifies in support of lottery funding for OMSI (SB 565). Submits information folder on OMSI (EXHIBIT B).

215 MARILYNNE EIKENGER: Testifies in support of lottery funding for OMSI (SB 565).

256 REP. HAYDEN: How many jobs will be created and how many jobs will be retained?

260 EIKENGER: We will increase our staff by 75-100 and also many jobs in construction. We have been sending our displays on national tours which create employment for businesses in the area.

278 REP. CARTER: We are in the position of having an "almost secondary budget" (funding for prisons, light-rail, etc.). To me there is no doubt that we need to have a great discussion on lottery dollars. How do you see us working with the leadership to make sure that we can do the one time kind of projects and not use lottery dollars for ongoing projects?

298 SEN. HANNON: The real question is what can be done to address the central issue of the legislative assembly, and that is let's talk about replacement revenue. We need to stop using lottery funds as a "safety net" for funding ongoing programs.

318 SEN. SPRINGER: I agree with your observations. The caucus is committed to expending energy to solve those questions. I think that this committee can reaffirm that goal by focusing on one time funded projects.

347 SEN. DUFF: What do you do that involves job training at OMSI?

350 EIKENGER: We work with the Private Industry Councils and we train students. Recently we have done a lot with teacher education and the retraining of teachers.

365 SEN. HAMBY: The career paths of some grade schoolers have been changed by visiting OMSI.

Regional Councils of Government (SB 303)

415 DORIS WADSWORTH: Begins presentation of written testimony in support of lottery funds for regional councils (EXHIBIT C).

TAPE 80, SIDE A

015 ALAN HERSHEY: Presents written testimony in support of lottery funds for regional councils (EXHIBIT D).

058 SEN. HAMBY: When you say locally financed you are talking about property tax. How many of the Councils of Government are funded by property taxes?

063 HERSHEY: All of them have at least a small percentage of property tax monies.

Straw Utilization (HB 3347)

100 REPRESENTATIVE LIZ VAN LEEUWEN: Presents testimony in support of lottery funds for a Straw Utilization Facility (HB 3347). Submits "Straw Utilization Project Summary" (EXHIBIT E), "Opportunities in Grass Straw Utilization" (EXHIBIT F), -1 amendments to SB 562 (EXHIBIT G) and -1 amendments to HB 3347 (EXHIBIT H).

234 ROGER CAMPBELL: Testifies in support of lottery funds for a straw utilization facility.

280 REP. HAYDEN: Is there enough straw to keep a plant burning all year?

285 REP. VAN LEEUWEN: The people who are doing bio mass energy production have found that straw burns best if they use about 20% of straw in the burning stream.

300 REP. BARNES: Where will the funds come from to operate the facility once it is built?

312 REP. VAN LEEUWEN: There is the potential of another plant moving in the area which would use some of the steam. I think you can get more money if you create both steam and electricity.

328 SEN. HAMBY: We have a tremendous amount of revenue for energy conservation projects based on co-generation for any taxing entity in this state. There is a loan fund for tax-supported entities to move to energy efficiency. Now they can retain 50 percent of the savings they make. This could be a more usable source of funds.

351 GEORGE VAN LEEUWEN: Testifies regarding project in 1982.

Covered Bridges (SB 273)

460 SEN. YIH: Presents written testimony in support of lottery funds for covered bridges (SB 273) (EXHIBIT I).

TAPE 79, SIDE B

030 SEN YIH: Continues presentation of EXHIBIT I.

Columbia River Bicentennial Commission

108 REP. JACKIE TAYLOR: Testifies in support of lottery funds for the Columbia River Bicentennial Commission.

Covered Bridges (SB 273)

165 DON RODEWALDT: Testifies in support of lottery funds for covered

bridges (SB 273).

185 BILL COCKRELL: Testifies in support of lottery funds for covered bridges (SB 273) (EXHIBIT J).

Agricultural Opportunities Fund

233 BRUCE ANDREWS: Presents written testimony in support of requested \$500,000 for the Agricultural Opportunity Fund (EXHIBIT K).

Fisheries

300 REP. DAVE MC TEAGUE: Presents testimony in support of lottery funds for fisheries.

325 REPRESENTATIVE LARRY SOWA: Presents testimony in support of lottery funds for fisheries.

371 REPRESENTATIVE TIM JOSI: Presents testimony in support of lottery funds for fisheries.

429 DALE PEARSON: Presents written testimony in support of lottery funds for fisheries (EXHIBIT L). Also submits "Fisheries Restoration and Enhancement" (EXHIBIT M).

TAPE 80, SIDE B

030 PEARSON: Continues presentation of EXHIBIT L.

088 SEN. DUFF: How much money is being raised through user fees for sport fishing?

090 PEARSON: For last biennium the estimate was \$2.2 million, I would say it was slightly more than that for this biennium.

101 REP. CARTER: Sports fishermen are paying the bulk of the dollars into the fund. Did you get any general fund dollars the last time.

112 PEARSON: No there are no general fund dollars in the program. We had \$1.75 million allocated last biennium from lottery, we only received between \$1.2 and \$1.3 million.

129 SEN. HAMBY: A lot of the Committee's time has been spent on the wood products area. Regarding the salmon listing as endangered, Oregonians are going to be severely affected. I am supportive of your efforts.

Columbia River Bicentennial Commission (SB 887)

170 GARY BRECKEN: Testifies in support of lottery funds for the Columbia River Bicentennial Commission (SB 887). Submits written testimony from JAMES B. THAYER (EXHIBIT N).

203 MARGUARITE WRIGHT: Testifies in support of lottery funds for the Columbia River Bicentennial

Commission (SB 887).

Fish Restoration and Enhancement Board

220 JIM BUSSARD: Testifies in support of lottery funds for the Fish Restoration and Enhancement Board.

317 CO-CHAIR FAWBUSH: We think the commission will not be in a position to raid the funds in the R & E Board.

Oregon Advanced Computing Institute

370 WALTER RUDD: Testifies in favor of lottery funds for the Oregon Advanced Computing Institute. Submits newsletter "OACIS EDGE" (EXHIBIT O).

464 SEN. HILL: How much has been invested, from all sources, in OACIS so far?

467 RUDD: We started with \$5 million from Governor Goldshmidt and we have had about \$2 million in industrial support in addition to that.

TAPE 81, SIDE A

Oregon Metals Council

040 HOWARD WERTH: Presents written testimony (EXHIBIT P).

058 JOHN DILLON: Continues presentation of EXHIBIT P. Also submits "OMI Projects" (EXHIBIT Q).

100 JOHN HAYGARTH: Continues presentation of EXHIBIT P. Also presents "OMI Projects" (EXHIBIT Q).

190 XUAN NGUYEN-DINH: Presents testimony in support of lottery funds for Oregon Metals Council. Presents "Precision Castparts Corporation" (EXHIBIT R).

Community Economic Stabilization Corporation

255 RICHARD CALLICRATE: Testifies in support of Community Economic Stabilization Corporations. Submits packet of information (EXHIBIT S).

286 JACK VISCARDI: Testifies in support of the Community Economic Stabilization Corporation.

World Affairs Council of Oregon

348 CHARLOTTE KENNEDY: Testifies in support of lottery funds for the World Affairs Council of Oregon. Submits written materials (EXHIBIT T).

TAPE 82, SIDE A

030 KENNEDY: Continues testimony in support of lottery funds for the World Affairs Council of Oregon.

We requested an additional \$90,000 this biennium.

048 SEN. DUFF: Couldn't you cooperate with other organizations that bring foreign visitors to rural areas?

050 KENNEDY: Yes and we do.

066 CO-CHAIR BAUM: We are looking at Tuesday night meetings with the Wednesday meetings.

080 CHAIR BAUM adjourns the meeting at 7:10 p.m.

Submitted by,

Jeri Chase
Office Manager
EXHIBIT SUMMARY

EXHIBIT A - Information packet on the Oregon Shakespeare Festival, submitted by Ann Selzer, pgs. 18.

EXHIBIT B - Information packet on the Oregon Museum of Science and Industry, submitted by Dani Wilke, pgs. 10.

EXHIBIT C - Testimony in favor of SB 303, submitted by Doris Wadsworth, pgs. 2.

EXHIBIT D - Testimony in favor of SB 303, submitted by Alan Hershey, pgs. 8.

EXHIBIT E - "Straw Utilization Project Summary," submitted by Representative Liz Van Leeuwen, pgs. 2.

EXHIBIT F - "Opportunities in Grass Straw Utilization," submitted by Representative Liz Van Leeuwen, pgs. 7.

EXHIBIT G - -1 amendment to SB 562, submitted by Representative Liz Van Leeuwen, pgs. 1.

EXHIBIT H - -1 amendments to HB 3347, submitted by Representative Liz Van Leeuwen, pgs. 2.

EXHIBIT I - Testimony in favor of SB 273, submitted by Senator Mae Yih, pgs. 5.

EXHIBIT J - Testimony in favor of SB 273, submitted by Bill Cockrell, pgs. 1.

EXHIBIT K - Testimony in favor of allocation for Agriculture, submitted by Bruce Andrews, pgs. 10.

EXHIBIT L - Testimony in favor of SB 246, submitted by Dale Pearson, pgs. 6.

EXHIBIT M - "Fisheries Restoration and Enhancement Act of 1989," submitted by Dale Pearson, pgs. 7.

EXHIBIT N - Testimony in favor of SB 887, submitted by Gary Brecken, pgs. 3.

EXHIBIT O - Newsletter "The Edge," submitted by Walter Rudd, pgs. 15.

EXHIBIT P - Testimony in favor of allocation to the Metals Industry, submitted by Howard Werth, pgs. 3.

EXHIBIT Q - "OMI Projects," submitted by John Haygarth, pgs. 4.

EXHIBIT R - "Precision Castparts Corp.," submitted by Xuan Nguyen-Dinh, pgs. 8.

EXHIBIT S - Packet of information on Community Economic Stabilization Corporations, submitted by Richard Callicrate, pgs. 7.

EXHIBIT T - Written material on the World Affairs Council, submitted by Charlotte Kennedy, pgs. 3.